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Emmorton Schoolhouse
Wheel Road
Bel Air, MD 21014

The Emmorton Schoolhouse, built in 1868, was one of 69 public
schools constructed in Harford County before the Higher building standards
were set in 1870, Most other schools were frame,and stone construction
of the Emmorton School made it realtively expensive at $1200. Although
altered since it was closed in 1920, the original one room-with-vestibule
plan is still apparent.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This one-story gable-roofed stone schoolhouse is located on the north side of Wheel
Road, about 1/10 mile west of MD. 24 at Emmorton. The building is rectangular

with a smaller foyer projecting from the south end. Added to this foyer is a
concrete block and frame extension which covers the original entrance. The addition
was built about 1972. The gable wall above the foyer projection has a small carved
date stone reading 1868. The main section has three bays along the sides in

which the original fenestration has been replaced with aluminum sash and louvred
shutters. A modern interior brick chimney is located at the south end near the
junction of the main section and foyer. At the north end, a recently added stove
pipe protrudes through the stone wall.

The interior has not been observed, but has apparently been extensively altered.
Originally, the school consisted of one room with the adjoining vestibule. A coal
stove stood in the center of the room. On the roof was a small bell. The original
roof has been covered wtih modern composition material.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Emmorton Stone Schoolhouse is one of two stone school houses built in Harford
County in the late 19th century, and reflects the importance of education in the
County during the post-Civil War period. The State Constitutions of 1864 and 1867
obliged the Legislature to establish "a thorough and efficient system of free public
schools". The construction of the Emmorton School in stone emphasized the commit-
ment of the County to this goal, as stone was the usual material for public buildings
and churches and the schoolhouse was thereby given equal importance with these
centers of 19th century County life.

History and Support:

. 1866, Harford County had 69 schools, of which 25 were considered iT good condition,
-4 in bad condition, and 20 were "ordinary, with 49 badly furnished".™ As part of

a statewide effort to upgrade public schools, the Harford County Board of School
Commissioners appropriated $250 on December.%l, 1866 for the building of a school

at Emmorton, to replace an earlier building. In 1868, the Board purchased a

lot of 16 square perches from Elijiah and Frances M. Magness and Sophia McHenry.3

It was part of the tracts called "Harris's Trust", "Gibson's Park," and "Preston's
Chance." The same year, the one-room stone schoolhouse now standing was built at

a cost of $1200.

The Emmorton School was relatively expensive, probably because of its stone construction.
Its original estimated cost was $600. Most other schoolhouses in the county were

frame or a combination of frame and stone. According to the Board of Education's

Annaul Report of 1916, of 102 buildings, only two were stone, 6 were brick, and 94

were frame. The nearby Mt. Carmel M. E. Church, built in 1865, is of similar
construction and style as the Emmorton School.

The school room was entered from the vestibule which had separate hooks on each side
for boys' and girls' coats. Originally, a coal stove stood in the center of the
room, around which were the desks facing toward the teacher's desk at the front

of the room. Each desk accommodated 2 children. Blackboards hung on the walls

~and each child had a slate. Separate outhouses were located in the woods behind

the school. (continued)

1. Harford County Directory, 1953, p. 382.

Ibid.
-+ Deed Book, ALJ 20/309.
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Land and Will Records of Harford County;Research by Ms. Clara Hopkins, June 1979.
Harford County Directory, 1953

History of Emmorton Grange #363, unpublished typescript by Mildred Preston, 1970.
Personal interview with Mildred Magness Preston (former student at Emmorton School),
April 20, 1981: Janet Davis, interviewer.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

[81F ORM PREPARED BY

NAME 7 TiTLE

Natalie Shivers/Wayne L. Nield, II/Janet Davis

ORGANIZATION DATE T
Maryland Historical Trust April 20, 1981
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

21 State Circle 269-2438

CITY OR TOWN STATE
Annapolis, - Maryland 21401

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

Ps- 1108



HA - 715 Significance # 8 - Continued
MAGL # 1307155504

Emmorton Stone Schoolhouse
104 West Wheel Road
Bel Air, Maryland

Children of several ages were taught by the same teacher and the original
enrollment was about 15 or 20 students. The number undoubtedly fluctuated
from year to year, but during World War I, with the establishment nearby
of the Edgewood Arsenal the enrollment rose to 85 or 90 with 2 teachers.
In 1920, the School Commissioners closed the school and a new frame school
building was built on Emmorton Road about 1/10 mile from the stone school.

For a few years beginning in 1920, the newly founded Emmorton Grange #363

met in the stone school house, but found it ''dark, damp, and totally
inadequate". In 1924, the school building was sold to Harry S. Pyle,

who apparently converted it to a residence. At some date after 1924, the
original coal storage area under the building was enlarged to a full basement.
Also after that date, a concrete block porch was added in front of the entrance.
In about 1972, the porch was fully enclosed, obscuring the original entrance.
Although the addition is a distinctly modern one, the original con-

figuration is still apparent and fully restorable.

4, History of Emmorton Grange #363, 1970, p. 1.
5. 1Ibid.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This one story, gable-roofed stone s 'oolhouse is located on the east side of
Wheel Rd., south of the intersection with Patterson Mill Road. Three bays long and
one room deep, the building, constructed in 1868, has two additions-one stone and one
frame-on the south end. Both have gable roofs of a lower pitch than the schoolhouse.
(The stone one probably dates from the erection of the larger structure. The frame wing
was built after the initial survey of the building in 1972.)
The main section has wide eaves and an interior brick chimney in the south end.
Ixcept for the north bay of the east side, the windows have 1/1 sash and louvered shutters.
Both sides have three windows; the north end has a single-light gable window and the south
end has the date "1868" painted in the gable.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1868, the Board of School Commissioners for Harford County puichased a lot of 16
square perches from Elijah and Frances M. Magness and Sophia McHenry. It was part of
the tracts "Harris's Trust', "Gibsons Park" and 'Prestons Chance', and a public school
was built here for a cost of $1200 the same year. In 1920, the School Commissioners closed
the school and in 1924 sold the lot to Harry S. Pyle.

According to a woman who taught grades 1-7 in the Tmmorton Schoolhouse, Mrs. Gatchell,
the building contained only one room and a vestibule (divided into a boy's side and a
girl's side). The students sat two to a desk and wrote on slates. The room was heated
by a coal stove, and there was a bell above the vestibule: separate boys' and girls' out-
houses were in the woods. Special events included a Christmas program and an Arbor Day
program.

Other teachers named were Miss Margaret Robinson and Miss Ethel Kerr Callahan,.

*~ong the students were Albert Henry Magness, Margaret Magness, William Magness, Marie
gness, Robert Magness, Mildred Magness, Robert W. Sampson, Margaret Sampson, and May
DeBrular.

This school was one of several public schools constructed prior to 1870. The Con-
stitution of 186L4-and subsequently the Constitution of 1867-obliged the Legislature to
establish "a thorough and efficient system of free public schools". In 1866, there were
69 schools-25 '"good'", 20 "ordinary} and 24 '"bad". A new building program was begun in
1870 with higher standards.

The Emmorton School appears to have been relatively expensive, probably because of
its stone construction-most others seem to have been frame, or a cog&énation of frame
and stone. According to the Board of Education's Annual Report of 1916, out of their -
102 school buildings, only two were stone, 6 were brick, and 94 were frame, Although -

- the fenestration has been altered slightly and a new addition built on, the structure
retains much of its original schoolhouse visage.

Footnotes
1

ALJ 20/309

2
DGW 186/324
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Emmorton Schoolhouse
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